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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

- EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

UNITED STATES OF AN

CARE-TECH LABORATOR
corporation;

lndividuals,

and JOHN
and SHERRY L. BRERETO‘N

BASTERN DIVISION
ERICA,
Plaintiff,

S Civil Case No: 4"5’96'/ /fyf

v.

rIEs, INC., a

C. BRERETON

Defendants.

Plalntlff, thl Unlted States of America, by and thxough its

uhd'e'r's‘igned ‘counsel

‘Injunction against

‘and John C. Brefétén and Sherry L. Brereton, individuals

(collectively,

vcoﬁsented to entry

“Def

, having filed a Complaint For Permanent

Carée-Tech Laboratoriesg, Inc., a corporation,

endants”), and Defendants having appeared and

of this Decree without contest, without’

admitting the éllegations referenced herein, and before any

testimony has been
‘Having consented to

IT IS HEREBY O

taken, and the United sStates of America,
this Decree;

RDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

1.

This Couﬁt has jurisdiction over the subject matter and

“all parties to thig action.

2. The Compl

Defendants under th

21 U.S.C. § 301 et

aint states a cause of action against
e Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act,

seg. (the “hAct”).
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3. Deféndants violate 21 U.8.C. § 331(d) by introducing or
- delivering, or causing to be introduced or delivered, into
interstate commerceé new drugs, as defined by 21 U.S.C. § 321(p),

that are neither approved pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 355(a), nor

exempt from approv§1 pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 355(i).

4. Defendanés violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(a) by introducing or
delivering, or Cau%ing to be introduced or aelivered, into
interstate commercé drugs, as defined by 21 U.S.C. § 321(g) (1),
 that are misbrahde% within the wmeaning of 21 U.8.C. § 352(f) (1).

S. - ‘Defendan%s vioclate 21 U.S.C. § 331(k) by causing drugs
that Defendants ho%d for sale after shipment of one or more of
their combonents ii interstate commerce to become misbranded

of 21 U.8.C. § 352(f)(1).

within the ‘1'neax‘lingi
6. Deféndanés violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(a) by introducing or

delivering, or causing to be introduced or delivered, into

interstate ccmmerc% drugs that are adulterated within the meaning

of 21 U.8.C. § 351{a)(2)(B) in that they have been manufactured,

?rdcesséd; packed,iand.held in violation of current good

manufacturing pracéice (~ceMP*) for drugs. 21 C.F.R. pts. 210,

- 211. | |

7. Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331 (k) by causing drugs

that Defendants hold for sale after shipment of one or more cof

their components in interstate commerce to become adulterated
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within the meaning|of 21 U.8.C. § 351(a)(2)(B) and 21 C.F.R.
Parts 210, 211.
8. Upon ent¥y of this Decfee, Defendants and each and all
,ofytheir directérs, officers, agents, representatives, employees,
‘attorneys, guccessors and assigns, and any and all persons or
entities in active|concert or participatidn Qith any of them, who
1have received aetu%l notiée of this Decree by personal service or
rdﬁhefwise,‘aréjper%ahéntly restrained and enjoined under
'ZI‘U;S‘C.‘s 332(a) from directly or indirectly doing or causing
' to be done any of %he following acts:
A, . Viofating 21 U.S.C. § 331(d), by introducing or

delivering, or cauging to be introduced or delivered, into

interstate commerce new drugs that are neither approved pursuant
to 21 U.8.C. § 355€a), hOr exempt from approval pursuant to
21 U.8.C. § 355(i)

B. Vio%ating 21 U.S.C. § 331({a), by introducing or
deliveriﬁg, or céuéing to be introduced or delivered, into
~interstate commercévdrugs that are misbranded within the meaning
of 21 U.S.C. § 352éf)(1) or adulterated within the meaning of
21 U.S.C. § 351(a)é2)(B); and

c. Vioiating 21 U.S.C. § 331(k}), by causing drugs
that Defendants hc%d for sale after shipment of one or more of

their components in interstate commerce to become misbranded

|
i
l
}
|
!

i
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within the méaning
thebmeaning of 21 ¢

5. Upon ent:
of their directors,
attotneys, successd

entities in active

of 21 U.S.C. § 352(f) (1) or adulterated within
I.S.C.’§ 351{a) (2) (B).

vy of this Decree, Defendants and each and all

officers, agents, representatives, employees,
yre, and assigne, and any and all persons or

concert or participation with any of them who

receive actual notice o6f this Decree by personal service or

otherwise, are per@anently restrained and enjoined under
1

21 U.8.C. § 332(a)

processing, packing

at ofr frém the faci

from directly or indirectly manufacturing,
, labeling, holding, or distributing any drug

lity located at 3224 South Kingshighway

‘Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri 63139 (“Defendants’ facility”),

~unless and until:

A.

i :
Deféndants’ methods, facilities, and controls used

to manufacture, préceas, pack, label, and hold drugs are

established, operat

B.

development and man

Defe

ed, and administered in compliance with CGMP;
ndants establish and follow scientific product

ufacturing process design procedures that

reflect an understanding of and result in appropriate control

over all significan

t variables, including material attributes and

processing'parametérs, impacting in-process material and f£inal

drug product specif

C.

ications and quality attributes;

Defendants establish and follow appropriate

laboratory controls, including, but not limited to, properly
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validétea and othetrwise scientifically sound microbioclogical
testing methods that demonstrate the microbial quality of
Defendants’ in-précéSS material and finished drug products. BSuch
IabbratOry controls shall be adequate to ensure that all drug
products manufactured, processed, packed, held, and distributed

by Defendants have|the safety, identity, strength, quality,

purity, and potency that they purport or are represented to
possess, ahd are ié compliance with the provisions of the Act,
its impleémenting rlgulations, and this Decree;

D. Def?ndants retain, at Defendants’ expense, an
indépehdent perSonior persons {(the “CGMP expert”), who is without
any petsonal or fiéancial ties (other than the retention
agreement) to Defeédants and their families, and who, by reason
of background, training, education, or experience, is qualified
to inspect'Defendaéts' drug manufacturing operations to determine

i
whether the méthodé, facilities, and controls are operated and

administered in cb%formity with CGMP. Defendants shall notify
FDA in writing offéhe identity and qualifications of the CGMP
expert as soon as qhey retain such expert;

E. The%CGMP expert shall perform a comprehensive
inspection of Deferdants’ facility and the methods and controls
used to manufacturé,'proeess, pack, label, ana hold drugs to

détermine whethér they are in compliance with CGMP;
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F. The|CGMP expert shall evaluate whether Defendants
have eSﬁéblishéd and implemented a comprehensive written Quality
AssﬁfanCG~(“QA”)/Qmaiity Control (“QC”) program that is adequate
to ensure ééntinuous comﬁliance with the Act, its implementing
regulations, and t?is Decree. The CGMP expert, at a minimum,
shall determine whéther the QA/QC program:

i. (a) Addresses all facets of compliance
mofitoring andftreﬁd anélySes; (b} establishes management systems
to track and store fecbrds relating to safety, identity,
§tréngth, guality, land purity of in-process, bulk, and finished
product and internal audit procedures; and (c¢) confirms that
Deféndants' Quality Contrql Unit (*QCU”), as defined by 21 C.F.R,

§ 210.3(b) (15), is|sufficiently trained to evaluate CGMP

cdmplianCe on an bﬁ—goihg basis and to prevent and promptly
correct any futureideviations from CGMP;

ii. ] Includes procedures to ensure that

Defendants, in a ti

.(a) product déviatn

Défendants’ product

failure of a batch

. mely manner, thoroughly investigate:
ong; (b) reports of complaints regarding
8; and (¢) any unexplained discrepancy or the

of drug or any of its components to meet any

of the product’'s oz

- component’'s specifications, including the

extension of>§uch investigation to other batches of the same drug

and other drugs thi

t may have been associated with the specific

failure or discrep?ncy; and to take required and timely
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for all products and components that fail to

meet their specifications;

iii

Establishes mechanisms to ensure that

written standard operating procedures (*SOPs”) are periodically

- ré-evaluated so that they remain in continuous cowmpliance with

CGMP, and that the

80Ps address all facets of CGMP and are

reviewed and controlled by an independent QA unit;

iv.

(a) Defendants’ QA

Includes written SOPs to ensure that

personnel are promptly notified in writing of

| deviations and/or problems that could affect the safety,

identity, strength,

quality, and purity of any drug;

(b) Defendants’ QA'personnel participate in or monitor the

implémentaticn and 'verification of corrective actions to prevent

future occurrences of such deviations and/or problems; and

(¢) there are syétéms to ensure that such written SOPs are

continuously follow
v.

responsibilities ar

jed; and
Includes written SOPs that specify the

id procedures applicable to QA and QC

personnel, and establishes mechanisms to ensure such SOPs are

- followed;

G. TheéCGMP expert certifies in writing to FDA that:

i.

facility, methods,

the ,CGMP expert has inspected Defendants’

processes, and controls;
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ii.| all CGMP deviations brought to Defendants’
: attehtioﬁ since February 2, 2000, by FDA, the CGMP expert, or any
OthernéourCerhave léen corrected; and

| iii such facilities, methods, processes, and

controls are in compliance with the requirements of CGMP. As

part of‘this cerﬁigication, the CGMP expert shall include a
"detailedfand compléte report of the results of the expert’s
inspection; ,

H. Defendants report to FDA in writing the actions
they have taken to

i. l|cokrect the CGMP deviations brought to

Defendants’ atténtion since February 2, 2000, by FDA, the CGMP
expert, and any other source; and

| ii.  ensure that the methods used in, and the
facilities and Conérols used for, manufacturing, processing,
packing, labeling, holding, and distributing drugs are operated
and will be continuously administered in conformity with CGMP;

I. FDA |representatives inspect Defendants’ facility

vto'determiné'whether the requirements of this Decree have been
met éhd ﬁhéther Déééndanﬁs are operating in conformity with the
"Aet; its~implemént%ng regulations, and this Decree, which FDA
’shall commence witAin ten (10) business days of receipt of both
the certification gescribed in paragraph 9(G) and the report

described in paraglaph 9(H); and
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J. FDA|notifies Defendants in writing that they
appéar to be in compliance with the requirements set forth in
paragraphs 9(A)- (@) of this Decree. FDA shall notify Defendants

in writing within deven (7) business days after completion of the

inspection'describgd in paragraph 9(I) whether Defendants appear
to be in compliancé with the requirements set forth in paragraphs
9(A)-(G). In no cirCumstance shall FDA‘s silence be construed as
a substitute for written notification.

| K. Notﬁing in paragraph 9 shall preciude Defendants
from manufacturing, processing, packing, and holding drug
prcduéﬁs‘for the scle purpose of performing equipment
qualification, validation of drug manufacturing processes, method
~validation of ﬁicr&biological testing methods, or stability

studies. Defendants shall maintain in a separate file at

Defendants’ facility a written log of all lot numbers of drugs
tmahufactured underithis provision,'and shall promptly make such
log available to FJA upon request. None of the drugs produced
under’paragraph 9(§) may be distributed.

10. Defendanés shall not commence, permit any other person
to ¢ommence, or caése any other person to commence attempting to
bring any anapprov%d, misbranded, and/or adulterated drugs that
are in Defendants’ possession, custody, or control (the

“violative articleg”) into compliance with the law unless and

until Defendants: |(a) within 30 calendar days of entry of this
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Decree submit a written statement to FDA detailing Defendants’
pfbposéd plan to bring the violative articles into compliance

‘with the law (the “Proposal”); (b) receives written approval of

the Proposal from ¥DA; and (cf receives written authorization
from FDA to commenée attempting to bring the violative articles
into ¢omplian6e with the law. FDA shall provide a written
résponge to the Pr?pOSal, and, if approved, a written
authorization frbm'FDA to commence attempting to bring the
fviclativé articles into compliance, within 30 calendar days of
the date of the suémiSsion of the Proposal.

11. Défendan%s shall at all times, until thé violatiye
articles have beenireleased in writing by an FDA representative,
retain the vioiatiée articles intact for examination or
inspection by an FﬁA representative in a place made known to and
-~ approved by FDA,va%d shall maintain the records or other proof

nécessary to esta‘bfish the identity of the articles to the

' satisfaction of the FDA representative.

12. Within‘Bg calendar days of receiving written
authorization tO'c%mmehce attempting to bring the violative
articlés into COmpﬁiance with the law, Defendants shall complete
their attempt in accordance with the Proposal approved pursuant
to paragraph 10, and under the supervision of FDA. Defendants

shall destroy any ynapproved, misbranded, and adulterated drugs

that are in Defenddnts’ possession, custody, or control that has

10
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not been brought intoycompliance,within 90 calendar days of entry
of this Decree, at|their own expense and under the supervision of

FDA..

13. Defendants shall at no time, and under no circumstances
whatsoever, directiy or indirectly, cause or permit the shipment,
pale, offer for saie, or other disposal of the violative articles
until: |

‘A. FDA|has had free access to the violative articles
in order to.take any samples or make any tests or examinations
that are deemed ne¢essafy; and |

B. FDA|has released, in writing, the violative

articles for shipmént, sale, or other disposition.

14. Defendants shall not sell, ship, destroy, or dispose
of, or permit or céUse another person to sell, ship, destroy, or
dispose of, the viélative articles or any part of them in a
manrier contrary to |the provisions of the Act, or other laws of
the United States,]or of any State or Territory (as defined in
the Act) in which %hey are disposed of or sold.

15. After Deéendants have complied with paragraphs 9(R)~(G)
and received an'séwriﬁten notification pursuant to paragraph
9(J), Defendants shall retain an independent person or persons
(héféinéfter,*“auditor”) who shall meet the criteria described in
paragraph 9(D) to conduct audit inspections of Defendants'

facility no less frequently than once every six (6) wmonths for a

11
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¥
1
i
1
i
1
)
i

period of one (1) year, and no less frequently than once every
year for four (4) ¥ears thereafter, unless otherwise directed by
FDA. The first audit shall occur‘not more than six months after
Defendants have re4eived FDA's written notification pursuant to
paragraph 8(J). I% Defendants choose, the auditor may be the
géaiiie  person or péréons retained as the CGMP expert described in
paragraph 9(D). |

| A. At éhe ¢onclusion of each audit inspection, the
auditor shall‘prepyre a detailed written audit report (*audit
 rep6ft¢) analyzing ﬁhether‘Defendants are in compliance with CGMP
and identifying an“deViations from CGMP (“audit report
obsérvations"). Aé a part of every audit report, the auditor
shall assess the aééquacy of corrective actions taken by
, Defendanté to corréct éll previous audit report observations.
- The audit reports ghall be delivered contemporaneously to
- Defendants and FDA by courier service or overnight delivery
service, no later than fifteen (15) business days after the date

the audit inspection is completed. In addition, Defendants shall

maintain the‘auditireborts in separate files at Defendants’
facility and shall jpromptly make the audit reports available to
FDA upon request.
~B. If an audit report contains any observations
ihdicating that Defendants are not in compliance with CGMP,

- De¢fendants shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of

12
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the aﬁdit réport, éorrect those observations, unless FDA notifies
 Defendants thét a shorter time period is necegsary. I1f, after
réceiving thé audit report, Defendants believe that correction of
the déviaticﬁs«wil1 take longer than fifteen (15) calendar days,

- befendants shall, éithin ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the
audit report, éubmit to FDA in writing a proposed schedule for
completing cérrect%ons (“cdr;ection schedule”). The correction

"~ schedule musdt be réviewéd and approved by FDA in writing prior to
implementation by ééféﬁdants. In no circumstance shall FDA’s
silence be construéd as a substitute for written approval.
Defehdénts shall cémpiete all corrections according to the
approved correctioé schedule. Immediately upon correction,
Defendants shall sébmit documentation of their correction to the
auditor. 'Within'téirty,(BO) calendar days of the auditor’s
receipt of Defendaéts' documentation of correction, unless FDA
ﬁdﬁifiés Deféndanté that a shorter time period is necessary, or
"within the time peiibd provided in a correction schedule approved
by FDA;‘the audiﬁb%ﬁéhall review the actions taken by Defendants
to correct the aﬁd%t report observations. Within five (5)
business days of beginning that review, the auditor shall report
in writing to FDA whether each of the audit report observations
has been corrected |and, if not, which audit report observations

remain uncorrected.

13
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16. Defendants may not commence or resume manufacturing or
distributing any drug that purports to be an OTC monograph drug

unless and until:

A, | Déf?ndants retain, at their expense, an
independent pérsonior person(s) (the “monograph expert”), who is
without any personél or financial ties {(other than the retention
agréément) tO'Déféédants and their families, and who, by reason
of*background; training, education, or experience, is qualified
to review the 1abeiing of Defendants’ OTC drug products to
determine whether %uchkproducts conform to an applicable OTC
monograph and othe# labeling requirements of the Act and its
impléménting regulétions. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing

of the identity and qualifications of the monograph expert as

goon as they retain such expert;
B. For jeach OTC drug product that Defendants propose

to manufacture andidistribute, the monograph expert performs a

comiprehensive revigw of the proposed labeling of that OTC drug
vprOdudt to detgrmi%e whether the product strictly conforms to an
applicable OTC monégraph and all labeling requirements, including
21 C.F.R. § 201, and that the drug product is not otherwise
‘misbranded;
c. For |each OTC drug product for which the monograph
expert completes the review described in paragraph 16 (B), the

moriograph expert certifies in writing to FDA that:

14
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i. | the monograph expert has reviewed the
proposed OTC drug product and its labeling;

ii.| the proposed OTC drug product conforms to an

applicable monograﬁh, and the OTC drug product’s labeling
conforms to all'apélicable labeling requirements, including 21
C.F.R. Part 201; ar;‘;d

| iii; the drug is not otherwise misbranded. As
part 6f this certiéication, the monograph expert shall attach the
labeling reviewed together with a detailed and complete report of
the results of‘theiexpért's labeling review, including references
to;the‘applicable éonograph and labeling regulations consulted by
the expert in COndﬁcting the review;

D. Defén&aﬁts have provided FDA any additional

information requested by the agency pursuant to the review of the

~ monograph expert’s |certification; and

E. FDA|notifies Defendants in writing that they

appear to be in compliance with the terms set forth in paragraphs

A , I
16 (A) - (D) of this Decree. For submissions concerning the OTC
1 ‘ :
drug products TechQi-Care and Satin, FDA will notify Defendants

-as to whether Defendants appear to be in compliance within 21

days of‘réceipt of |the monograph expert’s certification as set
forth in subparagraph 16 (C) and receipt of any information
requested by FDA pursuant to subparagraph 16 (D). For submissions

concerning any other OTC drug product(s), FDA will notify

15
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Defendahts as to whether Defendants appear to be in compliance
within 75 days of receipt of the monograph expert’s certification

as set forth in subparagraph 16(C) or any information reguested

by FDA pursuant té!subparagraph 16(D). In no circumstances may
’FbAfg silence be cénstrued as a substitute for written
notification. :

17. If at an§ time after entry of this Decree, FDA
determines, based én the results of an inspection, the analysis
of a sample, a repért, or data prepared or‘submitted by
Defendants, the CG@P expert, the auditor, the monogfaph expert,
or any other infor%ation, that Defendants have failed to comply

i
with any prbvisioniof this Decree, have violated the Act, or its
implementing régul%tions, or that additional corrective actions
are‘neCesséry to aéhieve compliance with this Decree, the Act, or
its implementing regulations, FDA may, as and when it deems
riecessary, notify Defendants in writing of the noncompliance and

order Defendants td take appropriate corrective action,

inclydding, but not|limited to, ordering Defendants to immediately
take one or more o# the following actions:

A, Céaée manufacturing, processing, packing,
labeling; holding, ior distributing any or all drugs;

B, Recall, at Defendants’ expense, any drug that is
uhapproved, misbranded, adulterated, or otherwise in violation of

this Decree, the Act, or its implementing regulations;

16
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C. Revise, modify, expand, or continue to submit any
reports or plans prepared pursuant to this Decree;

D. Submit additional reports or information to FDA as

requested; and

E. Také any other corrective actions as FDA, in its
discretion, deems éecessary to bring Defendants into compliance
with this Decree, ﬁhe Act, or its implementing regulations.

18. Theffolléwing process and procedures shall apply when
FDA issues an orde% under paragraph 17: '

A. Unléss,a different time frame is specified by FDA
in its order, Within ten (10) business days after receiving such
order, beféndants shall notify FDA in writing either that:

(1) Defendants are undertaking or have undertaken corrective
action, in which e@ent Defendants shall also describe the
specifié action(s)itaken or proposed to be taken and the proposed
schédule for cOmpl'ting the action(s); or (ii) Defendants do not
agree with FDA’s ogder. If Defendants notify FDA that they do
not agree with FDAgs order, Defendants shall explain in writing
the basis for thei% disagreement; in so doing, Defendants also
may propose 8pecif£c dlternative actions and specific time frames
for.aéhieving FDA'% objectives.

'B. If éefendants notify FDA that they do not agree
with‘FDA’é order, EDA will review Defendants’ notification and

thereafter, in writiing, affirm, modify, or withdraw its order, as

17
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the Agency deems appropriate. If FDA affirms or modifies its
order, it shall explain the basis for its decision in writing.

The written notice|of affirmation or modification shall

constitute final agency action.

| C. If %DA affirme or modifies its order, Defendants
s’hall, upon receipt of FDA’s order, immediately implement the
order (as modified; if applicable), and if they so choose, bring
the matter before éhiS‘Court on an expedited basis. Defendants
‘shall ccntinue to éiiigently implement FDA’s oxder, unless the
Court sets aside, étays, reverses, vacates, or modifies FDA’'s
~order. The Court’s decigion under this paragraph shall be made
in accordance with paragraph 28.

D. The process and procedures set forth in paragraphs

'~ 18(a) - (C) shall noéyapply to any order issued pursuant to
 paragfaph‘17 if such order states that, in FDA’s judgment, the
‘ordei_must be implemeﬁted immediately. 1In such case, Defendants

shall, upon receipt*of such order, immediately and fully comply

with the terms of that order. Should Defendants seek to
challenge any suchforder,‘they shall begin compliance with the
order while they pétition this Court for relief.

19. Any cessation of operations pursuant to paragraph 17
shall céntinue until FDA notifies Defendants in writing that they

appear to be in compliance with the Act, its implementing

-

18
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regulations, and the requirements of this Decree, and that
. Deféndants may, therefore, resume operations.

20. Representatives of FDA shall be permitted, without

prior notice and ag‘ahd when FDA deems necessary, to inspect
Defendants’ plaCeé;of businese and take any other measures
necessary to'moni;ér and ensure continuing compliance with the
. terms of this’becr%e; During inspections, FDA representatives
" shall be permittedito: have immediate access to buildings,
éguipwent, raw inggedients, in-procese materials, f£inished
products, containe%s, packaging material, labeling, and other
promotional materiél therein; take photographs and make video
.reCGrdings; to také samples of Defendants’ raw ingredients, in-
process materials, finished products, containers, packaging
material, labeling/ and other promotional material; and examine
and copy all records relating to the manufacture, processing,
packing, labeling, |hélding, and distribution of any and all drugs

and their components. The inspections shall be permitted upon

presentation of a ¢opy of‘this Decree and appropriate
' crédeﬁtials. The‘£n3pection authority granted by this Decree is
gseparate from, and|in addition to, the authority to make
inspections under the Act, 21 U.S.C, § 374.

21. Defendants shall reimburse FDA for the costs of all FDA
inspectiocns, inveétigations, supervision, analyses, examinations,

and reviews that FDA deems necegsary to evaluate Defendants’

19
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;
éompliance with any part of this Decree at the standard rates
prevailing at the lime the costs are incurred. As of the date of
entry bf'thislbecrLe, these rates are: $85.49 per hour or
fraction thereof pér representative for inspection and
investigative work; $102.49 per hour or fraction thereof per
‘represéntative for;analytical or review work; $0.55 per mile for
travel expenses by?autOmobile; government rate or the equivalent
for travel by air ér cother means; and the published government
per diem rate for éubsigtence expenses where necessary. In the
event that the Staéaard rates applicable to FDA supervision of
coﬁft-orderedycompiiance are modified, these rates shall be
bincrEased‘or’decreésed without further order of the Court.

22. Within tén (10) calendar days of the entry of this
Decree, Defendants|shall post a copy of this Decree in a common
area at Defendants’ facility and at any other location at which

Defendants conduct |business and shall ensure that the Decree

remains posted forgas long as the Decree remains in effect.

23. Within tén {(10) calendar days of the date of entry of
this Decree, Defenéants shall provide a copy of the Decree by
personal service o% certified mail (return receipt requested) tc;
each and all of théir directors, officers, agents} |
representatives, employees, attorneys, successors and assigns,

|

and any and all pexsons or entities in active concert or

participation withjany of them. Within thirty (30) calendar days
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ry: of this Decree, Defendants shall provide to
rating the fact and manner of their compliance

1, identifying the names, addresses, and

positions of all persons who have received a copy of this Decree.

24
(15) calendar days§

character of their|
| | |

Defendants shall notify FDA in writing at least fifteen

before any change in ownership, name, or

business that occurs after entry of this

n . 1] . s . | s . 13 r 3 L]
Dec¢ree, including qn incorporation, reorganization, creation of a

subsidiary, reloca%ion, dissolution, bankruptcy, assignment,

gsale, or any otherg

Tech Laboratories, |

chandge in the structure or identity of Care-

Inc., or the sale or assignment of any

business assets; s@ch as buildings, eguipment, or inventory that

';may'affect obligations‘arising out of this Decree. Defendants

shall provide a copy of this Decree to any prospective successor

or assign at least
agsignment. Defenc

compliance with thj

thirty (30) calendar days prior to any sale or
lants shall furnish FDA with an affidavit of

8 paragraph no later than ten (10) calendar

days prior to Suéh
25.
to FDA required by
the District Direct
West 80th Street, I
26. Should De

‘the Act or its impl

‘assignment or change in ownership.

All notifications, correspondence, and communications

the terms of this Decree shall be addressed to
or, FDA Kansas City District Office, 11630
)enexa, Kansas 66214.

fendants fail to comply with any provision of

ementing regulations relating to the
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manufactﬁring, processing, packing, labeling, holding, or
fdistfibuting of a drug, br any provision of this Decree,

inciuding any time frame imposed by this Decree, then, on motion

of thezunited‘état?é in this proceeding, such Defendants shall
pay to the United %tatéskof America: five thousand dollars
4($5,000) in liquid%ted damages for each day such violation
~cohtinues} an addi?idnal sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000) in
liguidated damages%fcr each violation of the Act, its
inplementing regulétions, and/or this Decree; and an additional
Cgum in 1iquidated éamagés equal to twice the retail value of any
shipments of adulﬁ?rated or misbranded'drugs or unapproved new
drﬁgé, The remedyéin this paragraph shall be in addition to any
other remedies available to the United States under this Decree
or the law.

27. Should‘theiUnited States bring and prevail in a

contempt action to|enforce the terms of this Decree, Defendants

shall, in addition!to other remedies, reimburse the United States
for its attorneys';fées {including overhead), investigational and
analytical expenSe%, expert witness fees, and court costs
relating to such céntempt proceedings.

28. Defendants shall abide by the decisions of FDA, and
FDA's déciSions shall be final. All decisions conferred upon FDA
in this Decree shall be vested in FDA‘s discretion and, if

contested, shall b? reviewed by this Court under the arbitrary
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and capricious standard set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2) (A).

Review by the Cour: of any FDA decision rendered pursuant to this

De¢ree shall be ba?ed exclusively on the written record before
FDA at the time th; decision was made. WNo discovery shall be
taken by either pa;ty.

29. This COu}t retains jurisdiction over this action and
the parties thereto for the purpose of enforcing and modifying
this Decree and fo% thé purpose of grantiné such additional

relief as may be nécessary or appropriate.

S0 ORDERED, this S day of fL1?l£1~JLa~/ , 2009.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUBGE
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